
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The following document was not prepared by the Office of the State Auditor, but was 
prepared by and submitted to the Office of the State Auditor by a private CPA firm.  The 
document was placed on this web page as it was submitted.  The Office of the State 
Auditor assumes no responsibility for its content or for any errors located in the 
document.  Any questions of accuracy or authenticity concerning this document should 
be submitted to the CPA firm that prepared the document. The name and address of the 
CPA firm appears in the document. 





PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}

-2-



PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
June 30, 2018

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Smith County Representative/President Don Pittman
Clarke County Representative/Vice President James Buchanan
Perry County Representative/Treasurer Larry Wilson
District-at-Large/Secretary R. Gerald Moore
Covington County Representative Bob Shoemake
George County Representative Greg Pitts
Greene County Representative Ben Johnson
Jones County Representative Larry E. Griffin
Lauderdale County Representative Bill Pennington
Newton County Representative John Walker
Stone County Representative Ron Purvis
Wayne County Representative Kenny Mills
District-At-Large Rex Hiatt
District-At-Large George Smith

DEPARTMENT HEADS

Executive Director Hiram Boone
Comptroller George DeCoux
Human Resources Director Bernie Hudson
Parks Director/Quality Control Allen Wright



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}

-4-



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 7

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 11

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Statement of Net Position 21

Statement of Activities 22

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 27

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Statement of Net Position 28

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Government Funds 29

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of

Activities 30

PROPRIETARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 33

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -

Proprietary Funds 34

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 35

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 65

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 66

Schedule of District Contributions-Pension 67

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability 68

Schedule of District Contributions-OPEB 69

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 70

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL:

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and

Other Matters based on an audit of Financial Statements performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 75



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}

-6-



M.ichelle Oppie Gist, CPA 

K.Jessica MavromiJuilis, CPA / (~~Wolfe .McDuff t60ppie Jesse]. Wolfe, CPA (1927-2009) 

Grover B. McDuff, CPA (Retired) 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

JackA. Oppie, CPA (1960-2014) 
(A Professional Association) 

3103 Pascagoula Street· Pascagoula, MS 39567 . Phone: 228-762-6348 . Fax: 228-762-4498 . www.wmocpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 


OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 


To the Executive Director and Board of Directors 
Pat Harrison Waterway District 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing StanritlrdJ issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Pat Harrison \'{/aterway District, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Pat Harrison 
Waterway District's basic flllancial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 06, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Pat Harrison \'{/a terway District's 
internal control over tillancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Pat Harrison \'{laterway District's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Pat Harrison \'V'aterway District's internal control. 

A defiaenry in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakneSJ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A signijimnt deficienry is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Pat Harrison Waterway District's fInancial sta tements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of flIlancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Membenhip in: 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants· Mississippi Sociel)' of Certified Public Accountants· AICPA Private Companies Practice Section 


AICPA Governmental Audjt Qyality Center· AICPA Center for Audit Qyility· AICPA Employee Benefit Plan Audir Qyality Center 


Amenca Counts on CPAs 

http:www.wmocpas.com


Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards (continued) 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing StandardJ in 
considenng the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Pascagoula, ]'vIS 
December 06, 2018 
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of the Pat Harrison Waterway District's (the District's) financial performance provides
an overall narrative review of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018. The intent of this
discussion and analysis is to look at the District's performance as a whole; readers should also review the financial
statements and the notes to the basic financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District's financial
performance. Information contained in this section is qualified by the more detailed information contained
elsewhere in the District's financial statements, notes to financial statements and any accompanying materials. To the
extent this discussion contains any forward-looking statements of the District's plans, objectives, expectations, and
prospects, the actual results could differ materially from those discussed herein.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 In 2018 and 2017, the District's net position amounted to $9,219,117 and $8,497,729, respectively. The net
position for governmental activities totaled $4,911,887 in 2018 and $4,061,905 in 2017, contributing 53%
and 48% of total net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017; business-type activities contributed 47% and 52%
at June 30, 2018 and 2017, totaling $4,307,230 in 2018 and $4,435,824 in 2017.

 General revenues for 2018 and 2017 were $2,734,394 and $2,203,954, equaling 50% and 45% of all revenues
for years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and
grants and contributions were $2,698,419 and $2,743,294 for 2018 and 2017, equaling 50% and 55% for
both years.

 In 2018 and 2017, the District had $4,711,425 and $4,755,024 in expenses, respectively; $2,698,419 and
$2,610,848 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants and contributions.

 Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $5,443,237 in 2018, and $5,473,640 in 2017.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial statements. The
District's basic financial statements are comprised of the following three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements
are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and include all assets and liabilities.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal years.

-11-



PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of both the District and business-type activities. The
governmental activities of the District include flood control and water management programs as well as debt service.
The business-type activities include customer fees for recreational activities and fees collected in association with
timber and capital projects.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21 - 22 of this report. 

Fund financial statements - Fund financial statements report how these services were financed in the short term, as
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the District's operations in more
detail than the government-wide financial statements by providing information about the District's most significant
funds. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The fund financial statements are comprised of the following funds: governmental and proprietary
(enterprise) funds.

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a user's
understanding of the basic financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 39 - 61
of this report. 

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the District's budget process and pension information. 

The District adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been  provided for the all funds. This required supplementary information can be found on pages 65 - 72 of this
report.

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund financial statements begin on page 27 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds. Some
funds are required to be established by State law and bond covenants. However, the District establishes many other
funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities
for using certain taxes, grants and other money. The District's two major types of funds are discussed below:

Governmental funds -  Most of the District's basic services (water management and flood control programs) are
reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left
at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. We describe the
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) and governmental funds in the reconciliations found on pages 28 and 30. 

Proprietary funds - When the District charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same manner that all activities are reported in the
statement of net position and the statement of activities. Major proprietary funds include the Recreation Fund.
Other nonmajor proprietary funds include the Timber Fund. These funds are the same as the business-type activities
reported in the government-wide financial statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as
cash flows. The accrual basis of accounting is used for proprietary funds.   
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position - net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government's financial position. The
following table presents a summary of the District's net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
 2018 2017  2018 2017  2018 2017

Current and Other Assets $ 5,605,487 4,692,864 4,000,474 4,210,814 9,605,961 8,903,678
Capital Assets 3,062,942 3,178,432 2,380,295 2,295,208 5,443,237 5,473,640

Total Assets 8,668,429 7,871,296 6,380,769 6,506,022 15,049,198 14,377,318

Deferred Outflows of
Resources 155,176 345,191 165,807 370,370 320,983 715,561

Long-term Debt Outstanding - 95,432 - - - 95,432
Other Liabilities 3,754,068 3,859,614 2,072,901 2,231,467 5,826,969 6,091,081

Total Liabilities 3,754,068 3,955,046 2,072,901 2,231,467 5,826,969 6,186,513

Deferred Inflows of
Resources 157,650 199,536 166,445 209,101 324,095 408,637

Net Position:
Invested in capital assets,  net
of debt 3,062,942 3,083,000 2,380,295 2,295,208 5,443,237 5,378,208
Restricted:

Debt Services - 81,207 - - - 81,207
Unrestricted 1,848,945 897,698 1,926,935 2,140,616 3,775,880 3,038,314

Total Net Position $ 4,911,887 4,061,905 4,307,230 4,435,824 9,219,117 8,497,729

Investment in capital assets (e.g. land, construction in progress, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure) accounted
for 59% and 63% of total net position in 2018 and 2017, respectively.  

Net position restricted for debt service reflects amounts restricted for the payment of general long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs, other than enterprise debt.

The remaining balance consisted of unrestricted net position, the part of net position used to finance everyday
operations without constraints of legal requirements.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

Changes in net position - The District's total revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were
$5,432,813 and $4,947,248, respectively. The total cost of all programs and services was $4,711,425 and $5,022,765
for 2018 and 2017, respectively. The following table presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2018  2017 2018  2017 2018  2017

Revenue
Program revenues:
   Charges for Services $ - - 2,510,354 2,743,294 2,510,354 2,743,294
   Capital Grants and
Contributions - - 188,065 - 188,065 -
General revenues:
   County Millage 1,870,499 2,172,620 - - 1,870,499 2,172,620
   Investment Income 47,801 16,418 27,166 15,306 74,967 31,724
Other Revenues 799,945 - (11,017) (390) 788,928 (390)

Total  Revenues 2,718,245 2,189,038 2,714,568 2,758,210 5,432,813 4,947,248

Program Expense
   General government 1,526,042 1,760,957 - - 1,526,042 1,760,957
   Culture and recreation - - 3,185,383 3,261,808 3,185,383 3,261,808

Total Program Expense 1,526,042 1,760,957 3,185,383 3,261,808 4,711,425 5,022,765

Excess (deficiency) 
before Transfers 1,192,203 428,081 (470,815) (503,598) 721,388 (75,517)

Transfers (342,221) (400,000) 342,221 400,000 - -

Change in Net Position 849,982 28,081 (128,594) (103,598) 721,388 (75,517)

Net Position - beginning 4,061,905 4,033,824 4,435,824 4,539,422 8,497,729 8,573,246
Net Position - ending $ 4,911,887 4,061,905 4,307,230 4,435,824 9,219,117 8,497,729

Governmental Activities

The District's governmental activities generated a change in net position of $849,982. This represents an increase of
approximately $821,901 from the previous years. The factors contributing to this increase include:
 During the year, the District received settlements from Jasper and Forrest Counties totaling $1,870,499 and

$675,000, respectively, for their withdrawal from the District.
 County millage was $1,870,499, a decrease of $(302,121) from the prior year.
 General government program expense was $1,526,042, a decrease of $(234,915) from the prior year.

Business-type Activities

The District's business-type activities generated a change in net position of $(128,594). This represents a decrease of
approximately $24,996 from the previous year. The factors contributing to this decrease include:
 Recreation charges for services revenue was $2,510,354, a decrease of $(232,940) from the prior year
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

As the District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined unassigned fund balance of
$3,593,829, compared to $2,735,543 in the previous year. Activities within the general fund contributed to 100% and
97% of the fund balances in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, no adjustments were made to the budget. Actual expenditures were $4,880,486
compared to $5,952,693 of the final budget. A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to
the District's actual financial activity for the District is provided on page 65 as required supplementary information.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets - The District's net capital assets for 2018 and 2017 were  $5,443,237 and $5,473,640, respectively.
the District mainly invested in equipment and improvements for the area. The following presents a summary of the
District's capital assets (net of depreciation) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
 2018  2017  2018  2017  2018  2017

Land $ 1,829,666 1,829,666 4,500 4,500 1,834,166 1,834,166
Buildings and
Improvements

1,072,368 1,153,458 1,985,503 1,898,580 3,057,871 3,052,038

Equipment 160,908 195,308 390,292 392,128 551,200 587,436
Totals $ 3,062,942 3,178,432 2,380,295 2,295,208 5,443,237 5,473,640

Debt Administration - At June 30, 2018, the District had $3,681,450 in long-term liabilities of which $11,390 is due
within one year. The following table presents a summary of the District's outstanding long-tem liabilities for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
 2018  2017  2018  2017  2018  2017

Corp of Engineers Lease - 95,432 - - - 95,432
Compensated Absences 50,439 59,974 57,938 58,686 108,377 118,660
Net Pension Liability 1,659,062 1,779,619 1,665,617 1,792,881 3,324,679 3,572,500
Net OPEB Liability 132,909 148,491 115,485 129,024 248,394 277,515
Total $ 1,842,410 2,083,516 1,839,040 1,980,591 3,681,450 4,064,107

The State law limits the District to a debt amount of $7,000,000 and as of June 30, 2018, the District is well below
the State limit. More detailed information about the District's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 7 to the
financial statements. 
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The following key economic indicators reflect the current operating environment of the District:
• Perry and Jackson Counties have withdrawn from the District during fiscal year 2017.

• The District has continued to upgrade the parks.

• The District continues to work with remaining counties with flood control projects.

• The District is continuing its timber management program.

• The Executive Director has been working with several other counties attempting to get them to join the
District.  Management hopes that additional counties will join the District in the coming fiscal year.

The District's Management and Board of Directors considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2019 budget
and fees that will be charged in the business-type activities. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

Governmental Activities 

Revenues of Pat Harrison Waterway District County Fund are expected to increase by about 1%.  The District
continues to receive 7/8 of a mil from the remaining counties.

Business-type Activities

Pat Harrison Waterway District expects the Recreation Fund to increase about 3%.  This is due to the improvements
made at the parks.  The District does not plan to cut any timber in the coming year, but will continue the forest
management plan so that timber sale revenue will be available in future years.

Our recreation expenses are expected to remain steady for fiscal year 2019.  At the present time there are no plans
for capital expenditures.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the
District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact the District's Comptroller's Office at 17 JM Tatum
Industrial Drive, Suite 120, Hattiesburg, Mississippi 39401.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The sets of statements include:

 Government-wide financial statements
 Fund financial statements:

 Governmental funds
 Proprietary (enterprise) funds

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to a user's
understanding of the basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

 STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 892,541 1,151,456 2,043,997
Receivables, net - 147,741 147,741
Due from counties 56,829 - 56,829
Investments 4,556,117 2,701,277 7,257,394
Prepaid items 100,000 - 100,000
Capital assets:

Land 1,829,666 4,500 1,834,166
Buildings and improvements, net 1,072,368 1,985,503 3,057,871
Equipment, net 160,908 390,292 551,200

Total capital assets 3,062,942 2,380,295 5,443,237
Total assets 8,668,429 6,380,769 15,049,198

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Deferred outflows - pensions 149,510 160,884 310,394
   Deferred outflows - OPEB 5,666 4,923 10,589

Total deferred outflows of resources 155,176 165,807 320,983
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 47,081 154,093 201,174
Salaries and benefits payable 24,678 39,841 64,519
County projects payable 1,839,899 - 1,839,899
Deposits payable - 7,550 7,550
Accrued expenses - 24,562 24,562
Unearned revenues - 7,815 7,815
Long-term liabilities:

Noncapital related debt:
Due within one year:

Compensated absences 5,596 5,794 11,390
Net OPEB liability 5,666 4,923 10,589

Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 44,843 52,144 96,987
Net pension liability 1,659,062 1,665,617 3,324,679
Net OPEB liability 127,243 110,562 237,805

Total liabilities 3,754,068 2,072,901 5,826,969

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 142,220 153,039 295,259
   Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 15,430 13,406 28,836

Total deferred inflows of resources 157,650 166,445 324,095
NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,062,942 2,380,295 5,443,237
Unrestricted 1,848,945 1,926,935 3,775,880

Total net position $ 4,911,887 4,307,230 9,219,117

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

Program Revenue
Net (expense) revenue and changes

in net position

Expenses

Fees and
Charges

for
Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital 
Grants and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities

Business-
Type

Activities Total

Governmental activities:
   General government $ 1,524,415 - - - (1,524,415) - (1,524,415)
   Interest and fiscal

charges 1,627 - - - (1,627) - (1,627)
      Total

governmental
activities

1,526,042 - - - (1,526,042) - (1,526,042)

Business-type activities:
   Recreation 3,185,383 2,510,354 - 188,065 - (486,964) (486,964)
       Total business-

type activities
3,185,383 2,510,354 - 188,065 - (486,964) (486,964)

Total district $ 4,711,425 2,510,354 - 188,065 (1,526,042) (486,964) (2,013,006)

GENERAL REVENUES:
   County ad valorem 1,870,499 - 1,870,499
   Settlement - Forrest & Jasper Counties, Note 14 800,000 - 800,000
   Investment earnings 47,801 27,166 74,967
   Gain (loss) on sale of assets (55) (11,017) (11,072)

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 2,718,245 16,149 2,734,394

Transfers (342,221) 342,221 -

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND
TRANSFERS

2,376,024 358,370 2,734,394

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 849,982 (128,594) 721,388

Net position - beginning 4,205,166 4,427,858 8,633,024

    Prior Period Adjustment, Note 15 (143,261) 7,966 (135,295)
Net position - beginning, restated 4,061,905 4,435,824 8,497,729
Net position - ending $ 4,911,887 4,307,230 9,219,117

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
 June 30, 2018

General Fund

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds
ASSETS
   Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 892,541 - 892,541
Due from counties 56,829 - 56,829

Total current assets 949,370 - 949,370
   Noncurrent assets:
        Investments 4,556,117 - 4,556,117

Total noncurrent assets 4,556,117 - 4,556,117

Total assets $ 5,505,487 - 5,505,487

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
   Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 47,081 - 47,081
Salaries and benefits payable 24,678 - 24,678
County projects payable 1,839,899 - 1,839,899

Total liabilities 1,911,658 - 1,911,658

   Fund balances:
Unassigned:

Unassigned/Unappropriated 3,593,829 - 3,593,829
Total fund balances 3,593,829 - 3,593,829

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,505,487 - 5,505,487

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2018

Total Governmental Fund Balance $ 3,593,829

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated lives and reported as
depreciation expense.

Governmental capital assets 10,566,708
Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,503,766) 3,062,942

Prepaid items, such as prepaid rents, are accounted for as expenditures in the period
of acquisition and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 100,000

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to future periods
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflow of resources related to pensions 149,510
Deferred inflows or resources related to pensions (142,220)

7,290

Some liabilities, including net OPEB obligations, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Net OPEB Liability (132,909)
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB are applicable to future periods
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 5,666
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (15,430)

(142,673)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds:

Compensated absences (50,439)
Net pension liability (1,659,062)

(1,709,501)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 4,911,887

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

General Fund

Other
Governmental

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds
REVENUES
County millage $ 1,870,499 - 1,870,499
Settlement - Forrest & Jasper Counties, Note 14 800,000 - 800,000
Investment earnings 47,763 38 47,801

Total revenues 2,718,262 38 2,718,300

EXPENDITURES
Personnel:

Salaries and fringe benefits 737,237 - 737,237
Travel 31,720 - 31,720

Contractual services 337,691 - 337,691
Commodities 2,361 - 2,361
Subsidies, loans, and grants:

Grants and emergency work project 249,770 - 249,770
Other 142,119 - 142,119

      Debt service:
     Principal payments - 95,432 95,432
     Interest and fiscal charges - 2,670 2,670

Total expenditures 1,500,898 98,102 1,599,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 1,217,364 (98,064) 1,119,300

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out) (359,078) 16,857 (342,221)

Total other financing uses (359,078) 16,857 (342,221)

Net change in fund balances 858,286 (81,207) 777,079

Fund balance - beginning 2,735,543 81,207 2,816,750

Fund balance - ending $ 3,593,829 - 3,593,829

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Government Funds $ 777,079

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense:

Capital outlay -
Depreciation expense (115,436)
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation (115,436)

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from the sale of an asset as
revenue. However, the statement of activities reports only the gain or loss on the sale. Thus,
the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the
asset sold. (55)

Pension expense and other related activity do not require the use of current financial
resources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Pension expense and contributions made subsequent to the measurement date (12,578)

Some items relating to pensions and reported in the statement of activities do not provide or
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
revenues/expenditures in the governmental funds. These activities include:

OPEB expense 5,078
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date (5,666)

588
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items:

Principal payments 95,432
Change in accrued interest payable 1,043

96,475

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the funds:

Accrued expenses 3,909
Prepaid expenses 100,000

103,909

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 849,982

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
 June 30, 2018

Major Fund

Recreation Fund Timber Fund
Total Enterprise

Fund
ASSETS
   Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,110,598 40,858 1,151,456
Accounts receivable, net 147,741 - 147,741

Total current assets 1,258,339 40,858 1,299,197
   Noncurrent assets:

Investments 1,251,277 1,450,000 2,701,277
Capital assets:
   Land 4,500 - 4,500
   Buildings and improvements, net 1,985,503 - 1,985,503
   Equipment, net 390,292 - 390,292

Total noncurrent assets 3,631,572 1,450,000 5,081,572
Total assets 4,889,911 1,490,858 6,380,769

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Deferred outflows of resources - pensions 160,884 - 160,884
  Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 4,923 - 4,923

Total deferred outflows of resources 165,807 - 165,807

LIABILITIES
   Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 154,093 - 154,093
Salaries and benefits payable 39,841 - 39,841
Deposits payable 7,550 - 7,550
Accrued expenses 24,562 - 24,562
Compensated absences 5,794 - 5,794
Unearned revenue 7,815 - 7,815
Net OPEB liability 4,923 - -

Total current liabilities 244,578 - 244,578
   Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 52,144 - 52,144
Net pension liability 1,665,617 - 1,665,617
Net OPEB liability 110,562 - 110,562

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,828,323 - 1,828,323
Total liabilities 2,072,901 - 2,072,901

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 153,039 - 153,039
  Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 13,406 - 13,406

Total deferred inflows of resources 166,445 - 166,445

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,380,295 - 2,380,295
Unrestricted 436,077 1,490,858 1,926,935

Total net position $ 2,816,372 1,490,858 4,307,230

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Major Fund

Recreation Fund Timber Fund
Total Enterprise

Funds
OPERATING INCOME
Charges for services $ 2,358,813 571 2,359,384
Special assessment 7,066 - 7,066
Rents and concessions 112,801 - 112,801
Miscellaneous 31,103 - 31,103

Total operating revenues 2,509,783 571 2,510,354

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services:

Salaries and fringe benefits 945,881 - 945,881
Travel 773 - 773

Contractual service 1,514,122 12,372 1,526,494
Commodities 490,317 - 490,317
Subsidies, loans and grants 2,275 - 2,275
Depreciation 219,643 - 219,643

Total operating expenses 3,173,011 12,372 3,185,383

Operating income (loss) (663,228) (11,801) (675,029)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment earnings 13,326 13,840 27,166
Loss from sale of assets (11,017) - (11,017)
Grant income 188,065 - 188,065

Total non-operating revenues 190,374 13,840 204,214

TRANSFERS
Transfers in (out) 342,221 - 342,221
        Total transfers 342,221 - 342,221

Change in net position (130,633) 2,039 (128,594)

Total net position - beginning 2,939,039 1,488,819 4,427,858
Prior period adjustments, Note 15 7,966 - 7,966
Total net position - beginning 2,947,005 1,488,819 4,435,824
Total net position - ending $ 2,816,372 1,490,858 4,307,230

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Major Fund

Recreation Fund Timber Fund
Total Enterprise

Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $ 2,448,954 571 2,449,525
Payments to suppliers of goods and services (1,986,146) (25,042) (2,011,188)
Payments to employees for services (921,781) - (921,781)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (458,973) (24,471) (483,444)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers from other funds 342,221 - 342,221
Grants 188,065 - 188,065

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 530,286 - 530,286

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase and construction of capital assets (266,672) - (266,672)

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing
activities (266,672) - (266,672)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends received 13,326 13,840 27,166

Net cash provided by investing activities 13,326 13,840 27,166

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(182,033) (10,631) (192,664)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 1,292,631 51,489 1,344,120

End of year $ 1,110,598 40,858 1,151,456

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Major Fund

Recreation Fund Timber Fund
Total Enterprise

Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash used by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (663,228) (11,801) (675,029)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash:

Depreciation expense 219,643 - 219,643
(Increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable (62,219) - (62,219)
Inventories 21,309 - 21,309
Due (to) from other funds 22,182 - 22,182

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable (22,923) - (22,923)
Accrued liabilities 25,621 (12,670) 12,951
Unearned revenues 1,390 - 1,390
Compensated absences (748) - (748)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (458,973) (24,471) (483,444)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Pat Harrison Waterway District's (the District) financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements. In the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the
proprietary funds, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board
(APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989 have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.  For enterprise funds, GASB Statement
No's. 20 and 34 provide the District with the option of electing to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that
date.  The District has chosen not to apply those pronouncements.  The accounting and reporting framework and
the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note. 

A.   Financial Reporting Entity

The District is a state agency reported as a component unit of the State of Mississippi.  The District was created by
an act of the Mississippi Legislature to bring about the full beneficial use of the surface and overflow waters of the
Pascagoula River Basin. The counties comprising the District are Clarke, Covington, George, Greene, Jones,
Lauderdale, Newton, Perry, Smith, Stone, and Wayne counties. Through preservation, conservation, storage, and
regulation of these waters, the District's objectives of flood control, water supply, economic development, irrigation,
pollution abatement, timber development, and recreation are to be achieved. 

Funding for the District is primarily provided by the eleven (11) member counties through millage assessments along
with revenues generated by its water parks and related services, and interest earnings generated by its investments.
As of the District's fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, funding from all counties was provided by a millage assessment
of .875 mills for District operations. 

The District does not have any component units as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
Are Component Units, an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.

B.  Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting government as a
whole.  They included all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds or component units that are
fiduciary in nature.  The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.  Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with  a specific function or
segment.  The District does not allocate indirect expenses to function in the statement of activities.  Program
revenues include 1) charges to customer or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not included among
program revenues are reported as general revenues.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered to be a separate
accounting entity.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts, which
constitute its assets, liabilities, net position/fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major individual governmental funds
and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.  Governmental
fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.  Expendable assets are
assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must be used.  Fund
liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be liquidated.  The District reports the difference between its
governmental fund assets and its liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources as fund balance.

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial
position, and cash flows.  The proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds.

Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary statements.  An
emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories.  A fund is considered major
if it is the primary operating fund of the District or meets the following criteria:

1.  Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise
fund are a least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and
2.   The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10 percent test is
a least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.
3.  In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the District believes is particularly important
to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

The District reports the following major funds:

Major Governmental Funds

 General Fund is the general operating fund of the District.  It is used to account for all financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Major Enterprise Funds

 Recreation and Timber funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that all costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purpose. 
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The District reports the following non-major funds:

Non-Major Governmental Funds

 Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs, other
than enterprise debt.  Currently, there is one debt service fund.

C.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and unearned revenue. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special
assessments are recorded as revenue when earned. Unbilled receivables are recorded as revenues when services are
provided.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are both measurable and available.
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences, and pension expenditures,
which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources.

Revenues resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.  On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded
when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the District is entitled to the resources
and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the District which are not available are recorded as receivables and
deferred revenues. Amounts received prior to the entitlement period are also recorded as deferred revenues.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The District reports unearned revenues on its governmental funds balance sheet. Unearned revenues arise from
taxes levied in the current year which are for subsequent year's operations. For governmental fund financial
statements, unearned revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available"
criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues also arise when resources are received before the
District has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal
claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as described previously in this note.  

The enterprise funds follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  The
proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges
to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D.  Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District deposits excess funds in the financial institution selected by the Board of Directors. For purposes of
cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  All cash and cash equivalents are reported at their
carrying amounts, which reasonably approximates fair value.

Receivables

All county notes, and other receivables are shown at their net realizable value. Management expects to collect entire
amounts due and therefore has not established an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Notes receivable in governmental funds consist of amounts that are not due to be collected in their entirety within
the subsequent year.

Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as
"interfund receivables/interfund payables."  These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns of the statement of net position, except for any net residual amounts due between governmental
and business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented as internal balances.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those capital assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds.
These assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds.  The District reports these assets in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but does not report these assets in
the governmental fund financial statements.  Capital position utilized by enterprise funds are reported both in the
business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and in the enterprise funds'
statement of net position.

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost.  Contributed assets are reported at fair value as of the date received.  Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.  Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress.  Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.  Depreciation on all assets is provided on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 5 -30 years
Building improvements 5 - 25 years
Improvements other than buildings 5 - 50 years
Equipment 5 - 20 years
Capital leases 15 - 50 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense) until then. The District has deferred outflows which is presented as deferred outflows for pension and
OPEB.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until then. The District has deferred inflow which is presented as deferred inflows for pension and OPEB.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Leases

Leases that substantially transfer all of the risks and benefits of ownership are accounted for as capital leases.  Capital
leases are included in capital assets and, where appropriate, are amortized over the shorter of their economic useful
lives or lease terms.  The related capital lease obligations are included in long-term liabilities in the government-wide
statements.

Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits and sick leave are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the District will compensate the
employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

All compensated absences liabilities include salary-related payments, where applicable.

The District accrues accumulated unpaid vacation leave at the end of the fiscal year.  The total compensated absence
liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.  Proprietary funds report the total compensated
liability in each individual fund at the fund reporting level.  Governmental funds report the compensated liability at
the fund reporting level only "when due".  The non-current portion (the amount estimated to be used beyond the
next fiscal year) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund
and government-wide presentations.

The District’s policy allows employees to accumulate unused sick leave on an unlimited basis and vacation leave up
to two years before reaching their vacation 'cap'.  Upon termination, any accumulated vacation will be paid to the
employee up to 240 hours.  Any earned vacation hours in excess of 240 hours is certified and sent to the Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS).  Sick leave is not paid upon termination, however, any unused sick time is
also certified and sent to PERS.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in
full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of these funds.  However, compensated absences
that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the
extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year.  Capital leases are recognized as a liability in the
governmental fund financial statements when due.

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of the debt issues is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses.
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Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State and School
Employees’ Life and Health Plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. Fiduciary net position was
zero as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017.  For this purpose, the OPEB Plan recognizes benefit payments
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

Net Position/Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance."  Fund equity for all
other reporting is classified as "net position."

In the Government-Wide financial statements, the difference between the District's total assets and deferred
outflows of resources, total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources represents net position.  Net position
displays three components:

1.  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other
borrowings attributable to the acquisition, constructions or improvement of those assets.

2.  Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3.  Unrestricted net position - All other net position not meeting the definition of "restricted" or "invested
in capital assets, net of related debt."  Unrestricted net position represents the net position available for
future operations.

Additionally, the District has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Government Fund Type Definitions.

Generally, governmental fund balances represent the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications
that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on
the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.  Fund balances are classified as follows:

 Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent.  This includes amounts that are either
not in a spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans/notes receivable, or
property held for resale unless the proceeds from the collection of those receivables or from the sale of
those properties are restricted, committed or assigned) or amounts that are legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact, such as a principal balance of a permanent fund.

-45-



PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

 Restricted - Includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by external
party such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed by
law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

 Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by the government through formal action at the highest level of decision making authority.  The
Board of Directors, through formal action approved in the board minutes, commits fund balance amounts
for the District. 

 Assigned - Includes spendable amounts that are constrained to be used for a specific purpose, but are
neither restricted nor committed.  Fund balance is assigned through formal action by the Board of Directors
for specific purposes.  For governmental funds, other than the general fund, this is the residual amount
within the fund that is not classified as nonspendable and is neither restricted nor committed.  

 Unassigned -  Is the residual classification for the general fund.  This classification represents fund balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund.  The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount.  In other governmental funds if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to
report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or
unassigned) resources are available, it is the District's general policy to use restricted resources first.  When
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) resources are
available, and amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the District's general policy to
spend committed resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.

The District does not have a minimum fund balance policy.

Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued.

Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in
the purchaser funds.  Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are
reported as interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental
funds and after the non-operating revenues/expenses section in the proprietary funds.  Repayments from the funds
responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the
financial statements (i.e., they are netted).
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are
reported as general revenues.  Transfers between funds reported in the governmental activities column are
eliminated.  Transfers between funds reported in the business-type activities column are eliminated.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statement in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates.

New GASB Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued new pronouncements that the District has reviewed for
application to their accounting and reporting.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions, is effective for
the periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all
postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The District has
implemented this reporting requirement for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.  Deposits and Investments Laws and Regulations

State law requires that all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits be 105% collateralized by U.S. Government
obligations or by state municipal obligations that have a market value of not less than the principal amount of the
deposits.  The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions are held in the name of the State
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State legislature and is governed by Section 27-1-5-5 Miss.
Code Ann. (1972).  Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by
the State Treasurer.  Financial Institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral
against those deposits.  In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be
liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation.

The District’s deposits were fully collateralized as required by statutes at June 30, 2018. 
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments are separately held by several funds of the District.  Investments consist of certificates of
deposit.  The District deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the Board in accordance with Mississippi
statutes.  

Deposits (demand deposits and certificate of deposits) at June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Governmental
Funds

Proprietary
Funds

Government-
Wide Statement

of Net Assets

Cash on hand $ - 2,064 2,064
Petty cash - 1,300 1,300
Bank deposits 892,541 1,148,092 2,040,633
Investments 4,556,117 2,701,277 7,257,394
Total $ 5,448,658 3,852,733 9,301,391

The carrying amount of the District's deposits was $9,298,027 and the bank balance was $9,397,979. The bank
balance is categorized as follows:

Amount collateralized with securities held in the State of Mississippi collateral pool on behalf of the
District $ 6,536,508

Amounts held at various financial institutions covered under Federal Depository Insurance
2,861,471

$ 9,397,979

At June 30, 2018, the District holds certificate of deposits, classified above as investments, as follows:

1st State Bank of Waynesboro, Laurel, Mississippi; matures November 7, 2018; interest at .30% $ 206,531
1st State Bank of Waynesboro, Laurel, Mississippi; matures December 31, 2018; interest at 1.75% 200,663
1st State Bank of Waynesboro, Laurel, Mississippi; matures February 8, 2019; interest at 1.75% 321,023
Bank of Wiggins, Wiggins, Mississippi; matures October 30, 2018; interest at .20% 100,000
Bank of Wiggins, Wiggins, Mississippi; matures November 9, 2018; interest at .35% 71,277
Citizens National Bank, Richton, Mississippi; matures September 22, 2018; interest at .85% 500,000
Community Bank, Hattiesburg, Mississippi; matures October 19, 2018; interest at .549% 210,000
Newton County Bank, Newton, Mississippi; matures June 6, 2019; interest at .85% 50,000
Newton County Bank, Newton, Mississippi; matures June 6, 2019; interest at .85% 200,000
Priority One Bank, Collins, Mississippi; matures February 1, 2019; interest at 1.27% 300,000
Regions, Hattiesburg, Mississippi; matures August 22, 2018; interest at .05% 255,000
The First, Wiggins, Mississippi; matures March 3, 2019; interest at 1.00% 600,000
The First, Wiggins, Mississippi; matures March 3, 2019; interest at 1.00% 1,250,000
The First, Wiggins, Mississippi; matures May 6, 2019; interest at 1.70% 525,000
The First, Wiggins, Mississippi; matures June 18, 2019; interest at 1.00% 750,000
First Bank, McComb, Mississippi; matures February 27, 2020; interest at 2.23% 1,510,317
Trustmark, Jackson, Mississippi; matures February 7, 2019; interest at .10% 207,583

Total certificate of deposits $ 7,257,394
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

In total, $7,257,394, of funds were set aside for investment purposes in the form of certificates of deposit. $655,000
has been designated as a maintenance reserve fund. $1,610,546 has been designated as a reserve for county projects.
$1,510,317 has been designated as a reserve for the potential purchase of an office building at the end of the
District's current lease. $706,531 is reserved for the County fund, and $200,000 for the Timber Fund. The remaining
$2,575,000 invested is available for recreational activities.

NOTE 4. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Credit Risk

Pat Harrison Waterway District's investment policy, in compliance with State statutes, authorizes the Treasurer to
invest monies in the following:

 Negotiable certificates of deposit
 Obligations of federal agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises
 Obligations of the U.S. Treasury
 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

As mentioned above, at June 30, 2018, the District only holds certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the District will not be able to
recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District does not have a
formal policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State Treasurer manages that risk on behalf of the
District. Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the pledging financial institution's trust department or
agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer on behalf of the District.

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Primary Government
Beginning
Balances Increases

Decreases /
Adjustments

Ending
Balances

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 1,829,666 - - 1,829,666
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 6,713,464 - - 6,713,464
Equipment 2,024,130 - (554) 2,023,576

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,737,594 - (554) 8,737,040
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 5,560,006 81,589 (499) 5,641,096
Equipment 1,828,822 33,846 - 1,862,668

Total accumulated depreciation 7,388,828 115,435 (499) 7,503,764
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,348,766 (115,435) (55) 1,233,276

Total governmental activities capital assets, net $ 3,178,432 (115,435) (55) 3,062,942
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Beginning
Balances Increases

Decreases /
Adjustments

Ending
Balances

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 4,500 - - 4,500
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 12,346,138 234,432 - 12,580,570
Equipment 1,679,132 81,314 (30,161) 1,730,285

Total capital assets being depreciated: 14,025,270 315,746 (30,161) 14,310,855
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 10,447,558 147,509 - 10,595,067
Equipment 1,287,004 72,133 (19,144) 1,339,993

Total accumulated depreciation 11,734,562 219,642 (19,144) 11,935,060
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,290,708 96,104 (11,017) 2,375,795

Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 2,295,208 96,104 (11,017) 2,380,295

Primary Government
Total capital assets, net $ 5,473,640 (19,331) (11,072) 5,443,237

Depreciation expense was charged to programs for the year ended June 30, 2018, as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 115,436

Business-type activities:
Recreation 219,643

Total depreciation expense $ 335,079

NOTE 6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Payables are composed of amounts due to vendors within 60 days of year end and accrued salaries and benefits.

NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, is shown as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Due within
One Year

Governmental Activities:
Capital leases $ 95,432 - 95,432 - -
Compensated absences 59,944 - 9,505 50,439 5,596
Net pension liability 1,779,619 - 120,557 1,659,062 -
Net OPEB liability 148,491 - 15,582 132,909 -

Total governmental activities long-term
liabilities $ 2,083,486 - 241,076 1,842,410 5,596
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Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Due within
One Year

Business-Type Activities
Compensated absences $ 58,686 - 748 57,938 5,794
Net pension liability 1,792,881 - 127,264 1,665,617 -
Net OPEB liability 129,024 - 13,539 115,485 -

Total business-type activities long-term
liabilities $ 1,980,591 - 141,551 1,839,040 5,794

NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASES

During May of 1965 the District entered into contract with the Corps of Engineers to participate in the construction
and maintenance of the Okatibbee water supply reservoir, which is located in Lauderdale County, Mississippi.  This
contract requires the District to pay $49,973 annually for fifty years maturing in 2018.  The total to be paid under this
contract will be $1,296,920 of principal and $1,201,706 in interest.

Interest payments for the District's capital lease for 2018 amounted to $2,670.  The amount of interest costs incurred
and charged to expense amounted to $2,670. Annual amortization expense is included in depreciation expense.

NOTE 9. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

At June 30, 2018, transfers to/from other funds consist of the following:

Transfer from County Fund to Recreation Fund for expenditures paid on behalf of the Recreation
Fund $ 359,078

Transfer from County Fund to the Debt Service Fund for the principal and interest paid on long-
term debt during fiscal year 2018. (16,857)
Total Transfers to/from other funds $ 342,221
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Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS)

Plan Description

Pat Harrison Waterway District contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  PERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Plan provisions and the
Board of Trustees’ authority to determine contribution rates are established by Miss. Code Ann. Section 25-11-1 et
seq., (1972, as amended) and may be amended only by the Mississippi Legislature.  PERS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  That report may be
obtained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street,
Jackson, MS 39201 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.

Benefits Provided

Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hiring for qualifying employees and officials of the
State of Mississippi, state universities, community and junior colleges, and teachers and employees of the public
school districts.  For those persons employed by political subdivisions and instrumentalities of the State of
Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity’s participation in PERS by the PERS’ Board of
Trustees.  If approved, membership for the entity’s employees is a condition of employment and eligibility is granted
to those who qualify upon hiring.  Participating members who are vested and retire at or after age 60 or those who
retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of creditable service for employees who
became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are entitled, upon application, to an annual retirement allowance
payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 2.0 percent of their average compensation for each year of creditable
service up to and including 30 years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2.5
percent for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of
creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below 65, whichever is less.
Average compensation is the average of the employee’s earnings during the four highest compensated years of
creditable service.  Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four years of membership
service for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2007).  PERS also provides certain death and
disability benefits.  A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries.  The
COLA is equal to 3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year of retirement up to the year
in which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became members of PERS

before July 1, 2011), with 3.0 percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter.  Plan provisions are established
and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.

Contributions

PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covered salary and Pat Harrison Waterway District
is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.  The employer’s rate as of June 30, 2018 was 15.75% of
annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may be amended only
by the State of Mississippi Legislature.  

-52-



PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN (continued)

Pat Harrison Waterway District's contribution to PERS for the year ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016 was
$188,734, $195,707 and $201,515, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $3,324,679 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Districts's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Districts's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the
Districts's proportion was 0.02 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of  June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $217,796. At June 30, 2018, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experiences $ 47,765 24,259
Changes of assumptions 73,895 5,665
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments - 42,686
Changes is proportion and differences between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

- 222,649

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 188,734 -
Total $ 310,394 295,259

$188,734 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Districts's contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability in the year ending
June 30, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30, :
2019 $ (103,243)
2020 (8,535)
2021 2,399
2022 (64,220)
2023 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (173,599)
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Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 3.75 - 18.50%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of pension plan investments expense, 

including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table with Scale BB to 2022, set forward
one year for males.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016. The experience report is dated April 18, 2017.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected nominal returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June
30, 2017, are summarized in the following table:

Asset class
Target

Allocation

Long-term
expected real
rate of return

U.S. Broad %27.00 4.60
International equity 18.00 4.50
Emerging markets equity 4.00 4.75
Global 12.00 4.75
Fixed income 18.00 0.75
Real assets 10.00 3.50
Private equity 8.00 5.10
Emerging debt 2.00 2.25
Cash 1.00 -
Total %100.00

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
(9.00%) and that employer contributions will be made at the current employer contribution rate (15.75%). Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.75%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.75%) than
the current rate:

1% Decrease
(6.75%)

Current
Discount Rate

(7.75%)
1% Increase

(8.75%)
District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability 4,360,538 3,324,679 2,464,690

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS
financial report.

NOTE 11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan description
State law mandates that all state, public education, library, junior and community college and retiring employees be
offered health and life benefit coverage through the State and School Employees’ Life and Health Insurance Plan
(the Plan).  The Plan was established by Section 25-15-3 et seq., Mississippi Code Ann. (1972), which may be
amended only by the State Legislature. The State and School Employees’ Health Insurance Management Board (the
Board) administers the Plan.  The Board has the sole legal authority to promulgate rules and regulations governing
the operations of the Plan within the confines of the law governing the Plan. The Plan is self-insured and is financed
through premiums collected from employers, employees, retirees and COBRA participants.  The Plan provides for
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) as a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan.  A trust was created
June 28, 2018 for the OPEB Plan and, while no trust was in place for the June 30, 2017 plan year-end, for purposes
of comparability for future periods, terminology used herein is based on the plan being a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan.  The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.  

Benefits provided 

The Plan was formed by the State Legislature to provide group health and life benefits to full-time active and retired
employees of the State, agencies, universities, community/junior colleges, public school districts and public libraries.
In addition, the spouse and/or children of covered employees and retirees, as well as surviving spouses and COBRA
participants, may be eligible for health insurance coverage under the Plan. Benefits of the OPEB Plan consist of an
implicit rate subsidy, which is essentially the difference between the average cost of providing health care benefits to
retirees under age 65 and the average cost of providing health care benefits to all participants when premiums paid
by retirees are not age adjusted.   Employees’ premiums are funded primarily by their employers. Retirees must pay
their own premiums, as do active employees for spouse and dependent medical coverage. The Board has the sole
authority for setting life and health insurance premiums for the Plan. Per Section 12-15-15 (10) Mississippi Code
Ann. (1972), a retired employee electing to purchase retiree life and health insurance must pay the
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full cost of such insurance premium. If the Board determined actuarially that the premium paid by the participating
retirees adversely affects the overall cost of the Plan to the State, then the Board may impose a premium surcharge,
not to exceed 15%, upon such participating retired employees who are under the age for Medicare eligibility and who
are initially employed before January 1, 2006. For participating retired employees who are under the age for Medicare
eligibility and who are initially employed on or after January 1, 2006, the Board may impose a premium surcharge in
an amount the Board determined actuarially to cover the full cost of insurance.  The Plan offers a Base option and a
Select option for health benefits for non-Medicare participants.  The Plan includes a separate coverage level for
Medicare eligible retirees, Medicare Eligible surviving spouses, and Medicare eligible dependents of retirees and
surviving spouses. 

Contributions

The Board has the sole authority for setting life and health insurance premiums for the Plan.  The required
premiums vary based on the plan selected and the type of participant. Employers pay no premiums for retirees while
employees’ premiums are funded primarily by their employer.  Contributions to the OPEB plan from the District
were $10,589 for the year ended June 30, 2018.  

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources related to OPEB

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $237,805 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability.
The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The basis for the District’s proportion is
determined by comparing the employer’s average monthly employees participating in the Plan with the total average
employees participating in the Plan in the fiscal year of all employers.  The allocation was utilized because the level of
premiums contributed by each employer is the same for any employee regardless of plan participation elections made
by the employee.  At the measurement date of June 30, 2017, the District’s proportion was 0.03165827 percent.
This was a decrease of 0.00233052 percent from the proportionate share as of the measurement date of June 30,
2016.  

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $9,489. At June 30, 2018, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - -
Changes of assumptions - 12,648
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments - -
Changes in proportion and differences between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions           - 16,188
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 10,589 -
Total $ 10,589 28,836
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

$10,589 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from district contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2019.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30,:
2019 $ (5,059)
2020 (5,059)
2021 (5,059)
2022 (5,059)
2023 (5,059)
Thereafter (3,541)
Total $ (28,836)

Actuarial assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 3.25-18.50%, including wage inflation
Long-term Investment Rate of Return, net of OPEB
plan investment expense, including inflation

Municipal Bond Index Rate
  Measurement Date
  Prior Measurement Date

N/A

3.56%
3.01%

Year FNP is projected to be depleted
  Measurement Date
  Prior Measurement Date

Single Equivalent Interest Rate, net of OPEB plan
investment expense, including inflation
  Measurement Date
  Prior Measurement Date

2017
2016

3.56%
3.01%

Health Care Cost Trends
  Medicare Supplement Claims
   Pre-Medicare

7.75% for 2017 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00%
by 2023

Both pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar
Table projected with Scale BB to 2022, male rates set forward 1 year and adjusted by 106% for males at all ages, and
females adjusted to 90% for ages less than 76, 95% for age 76, 105% for age 78 and 110% for ages 79 and greater.
Post-disability mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table set forward 4 years for
males and 3 years for females. 

The demographic actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study dated April 18, 2017.
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NOTE 11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g., initial per capita costs, health care cost trends, rate of plan participation,
rates of plan election, etc.) used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on a review of recent plan experience
done concurrently with the June 30, 2017 valuation. 

The plan had no assets as of the measurement date of 2017.  

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2017 was 3.56%. Since the Prior Measurement
Date, the Discount Rate has changed from 3.01% to 3.56%. 

Since no trust was set up as of June 30, 2017, there was no projection of cash flows for the Plan and the Plan was
projected to be depleted in 2017. 

The discount rate determination will use a municipal bond rate to the extent the trust is projected to run out of
money before all benefits are paid. The rate used, if necessary, for this purpose is the average of the Bond Buyer
General Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index Rates during the month of June published at the end of each
week by the Bond Buyer. 

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (2.56%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.56%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease
(2.56%)

Discount Rate
(3.56%)

1% Increase
(4.56%)

Net OPEB liability 254,954 237,805 243,508

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost
trend rates

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher  than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

      
1% Decrease Healthcare Cost

Trend Rates
Current

1% Increase 

Net OPEB liability 229,408 237,805 270,068

OPEB plan fiduciary net position

The fiduciary net position for the OPEB plan was zero as of June 30, 2017, the measurement date.  Therefore, no
separately issued financials were prepared.  Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position for
June 30, 2018 and going forward will be available in separately issued financial reports available on the Mississippi
Department of Finance and Administration’s website.    
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NOTE 12. RAINCHECKS

Pat Harrison Waterway District offers rainchecks to campers and visitors upon request. Rainchecks have an
expiration date of one year from the date of issuance. The District has not included the effects of outstanding
rainchecks in the accompanying financial statements. The total outstanding rainchecks at June 30, 2018, was $36,710.
It is the experience of the District that approximately thirty-five percent (35%) of outstanding rainchecks will be
presented for usage. As such, the Districts expects rainchecks totaling approximately $12,849 to be presented during
the next fiscal period.

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Related Party Transactions

No known transaction requiring disclosure occurred between the District and its employees or elected officials. 

Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the District. While the District cannot predict the results of any
litigation, legal counsel for the District believes that it has meritorious defenses for those actions, proceedings, and
claims, or they are without merit or are of such kind, or involve such amounts, that unfavorable dispositions are not
covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial position of Pat Harrison
Waterway District.  

Contractual Obligations

The District has entered multiple contracts with the United States Department of the Interior and the United States
Department of Agriculture that require the District to operate and maintain its recreational parks in perpetuity or
until the parks are no longer useful. The District estimates the future cost to operate and maintain the parks in
perpetuity will exceed $100,000,000. These costs will be expensed as incurred.

The District is committed under various operating leases for office equipment. Lease expenditures for copier
machines for the year ended June 30, 2018 amounted to approximately $4,308. Future minimum base lease payments
for these leases are approximately as follows: 

Minimum
Fiscal Year Ending

June 30,
 Equipment

Lease Payment

2019 $ 3,444
2020 497
2021 -
2022 -
2023 -
Total $ 3,941
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NOTE 14. OTHER NOTES

Operating Leases in Statement of Lessors

The District leases various properties to several lessors during the year. These lease arrangements are classified as
operating leases for accounting purposes and paid on a monthly and yearly basis with corresponding renewal
options. The leased properties have a cost of $3,284,785 with a carrying value of $974,131.

The future minimum lease rentals are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,

Minimum 
Lease Rental 

2019 $ 84,000
2020 84,000
2021 84,000
2022 84,000
2023 84,000
Total $ 420,000

Unusual or Infrequent Items (Not Within Control of Management)

In December 2017, the District received settlement payment from Jasper County amounting to $125,000.  In January
2018, the District received settlement payment from Forrest County amounting to $675,000, which accounts for one
half of the total settlement. These amounts represent Jasper and Forrest Counties' portion of the District's liabilities
at the time of their withdrawal from the District and assessed interest.  Amounts received are included as revenues in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds.

Effect of Deferred Amounts on Net Position

The unrestricted net position amount of $3,775,880 includes the effect of deferring the recognition of expenses and
revenue associated with the net position liability and related account balances.

Risk Management

The State of Mississippi has elected to retain most exposure to risk, including health and life benefits, tort liability,
unemployment benefits and workers compensation benefits. The District contributes to the State's internal service
risk management fund based on actuarially determined assessments and premiums charged by the State.

NOTE 15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment of $(135,295) was made to correct June 30, 2017 net assets related to the following:

Net position, June 30, 2017 as originally presented $ 8,633,024
Retrospective implementation of GASB 75 (267,741)
To correct the understatement of revenue related to grants 132,446
As restated $ 8,497,729
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NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the statement of net assets date but before the financial statements were available to be
issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of net position date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements.
Subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after the statement of net position date
require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management of the District evaluated the activity of the entity through
December 06, 2018, the date of issuance of the financial statements and has not noted the following events:

The District completed the transfer of the District office property located on Highway 49 South to Forrest County
in July 2018.  This transfer completes the settlement of the lawsuit the District filed against Forrest
County contesting their withdrawal from the District.  The District moved  the district office to its new location in
the Forrest County Industrial  Park in early July 2018.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

ALL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

UNAUDITED

Original
Budget Final Budget

Actual 
(Budgetary

Basis)

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)

REVENUES
Recreation $ 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,510,354 10,354
County millage 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,870,499 (129,501)
Other revenues 1,452,693 1,452,693 1,052,015 (400,678)

Total revenues 5,952,693 5,952,693 5,432,868 (519,825)

EXPENDITURES
Personnel services:

Salaries and fringe benefits 1,703,189 1,703,189 1,683,118 20,071
Travel 41,310 41,310 32,493 8,817

Contractual services 1,891,910 1,891,910 1,864,185 27,725
Commodities 684,603 684,603 492,678 191,925
Capital outlay

Other than equipment 500,000 500,000 234,432 265,568
Equipment 157,464 157,464 81,314 76,150
Vehicles 90,000 90,000 - 90,000

Subsidies, loans, and grants 884,217 884,217 492,266 391,951
Total expenditures 5,952,693 5,952,693 4,880,486 1,072,207

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

- - 552,382 552,382

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

Transfers in - - 342,221 342,221
Transfers out - - (342,221) (342,221)

Total other financing 
  sources and uses - - - -

Net change in fund balance 552,382 $ 552,382

Fund balance - beginning 7,252,574

Fund balance - ending $ 7,804,956

Differences between budgetary and GAAP fund balance:

Fund Balance, end of year (Budgetary Basis) $ 7,804,956
Depreciation on GAAP basis (219,643)
Capital outlay on budgetary basis 315,746

Fund Balance, end of year (GAAP) $ 7,901,059

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
NET PENSION LIABILITY*

Public Employees Retirement System of Mississippi
Last 10 Fiscal Years (Only 4 Years Shown)**

UNAUDITED

2018 2017 2016 2015
District's proportion of the net pension liability
(asset) %0.02 %0.02 %0.02 %0.03

District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) $ 3,324,679 3,572,500 3,423,766 3,019,976

District's covered payroll 1,242,581 1,279,453 1,383,755 1,520,289

District's proportionate share of the collective net
pension liability as a percentage of its covered
payroll %267.56 %279.22 %247.43 %198.64

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability %57.47 %57.47 %61.70 %67.21

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30 of the prior
year to the fiscal year presented.

**This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - PERS
Public Employees Retirement System of Mississippi

Last 10 Fiscal Years (Only 4 Years Shown)**
UNAUDITED

2018 2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 188,734 195,707 201,515 217,942
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution (188,734) (195,707) (201,515) (217,942)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - -

District's covered payroll $ 1,198,310 1,242,581 1,279,453 1,383,755

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %15.75 %15.75 %15.75 %15.75

**This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
THE NET OPEB LIABILITY

Last 10 Fiscal Years (Only 1 Year Shown)*
UNAUDITED

2018
District's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) %0.03165827

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) $ 237,805

District's covered payroll 1,242,581

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll %19.14

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability %-

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30 of the year
prior to the fiscal year presented.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the District has only presented information for the years in which information is availabe.
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB
Last 10 Fiscal Years (Only 1 Year Shown)*

UNAUDITED

2018
Contractually required contribution $ 10,589
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (10,589)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -

District's covered payroll $ 1,198,310

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll %0.88

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30 of the year
prior to the fiscal year presented.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the District has only presented information for the years in which information is availabe.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Statutory requirements dictate how and when the District's budget is to be prepared. Specifically, section 51-15-158
Mississippi Code, Annotated (1972) states "On or before the fifteenth (15th) day of July of each year, the board of
directors of the District shall prepare and file with the clerk of the board of supervisors of each member county at
lease two (2) copies of a budget of estimated expenditures for the support, maintenance and operations of the
District for the fiscal year commencing on July 1st of the succeeding year.". The completed budget for the fiscal year
includes for all funds every source of revenue, each general item of expenditure, and unencumbered cash and
investment balances. On a periodic basis, as required by changing conditions, the budgeted amounts are amended. 

The District's budget is prepared principally on the cash basis of accounting. All appropriations lapse at year-end,
and there are no encumbrances to budget because state law does not require that funds be available when goods or
services are ordered, only when payment is made.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP, Cash Basis) presents the original legally
adopted budget, the final legally adopted budget, actual amounts on a budgetary (Non-GAAP, Cash Basis) and
variance between the final budget and the actual amounts. The schedule is presented for all funds of the District.
The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP, Cash Basis) is a part of required
supplemental information. 

B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations (Budget)

There were no expenditures in excess of appropriations (budget) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 2. PENSION SCHEDULES

A. Changes of assumptions

2015:
The  expectation  of  retired  life  mortality  was  changed  to  the  RP-2014  Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar
Table projected to 2016 using Scale BB rather than the RP-2000 Mortality Table, which was used prior to
2015.   

The expectation of disabled mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, rather than the
RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table, which was used prior to 2015.

Withdrawal   rates,   pre-retirement   mortality   rates,   disability rates and service retirement rates were also
adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience.  

Assumed  rates  of  salary  increase  were  adjusted  to  more  closely  reflect actual and anticipated
experience.  

The price  inflation  and  investment  rate  of  return  assumptions  were  changed  from 3.50% to 3.00%
and 8.00% to 7.75%, respectively.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 2. PENSION SCHEDULES(continued)

A. Changes of assumptions(continued)

2016:
The assumed rate of interest credited to employee contributions was changed from 3.50% to 2.00%. 

2017: 

The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar
Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2022.  Small adjustments were also made to the Mortality Table
for disabled lives. 

The wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.75% to 3.25%.
 

Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service retirement rates were also
adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. 

The percentage of active member disabilities assumed to be in the line of duty was increased from 6% to
7%. 

B. Changes in benefit provisions

2016:

Effective July 1, 2016, the interest rate on employee contributions shall be calculated based on the money
market rate as published by the Wall Street Journal on December 31 of each preceding year with a minimum
rate of one percent and a maximum rate of five percent. 

C. Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions

The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of employer contributions are calculated as of
June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported (June 30, 2015
valuation for the June 30, 2017 fiscal year end). The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used
to determine the most recent contribution rate reported in that schedule: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open
Remaining amortization period 33.9 years
Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market
Price Inflation 3.00 percent
Salary increase 3.75 percent to 19.00 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation
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PAT HARRISON WATERWAY DISTRICT
A Component Unit of the State of Mississippi

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended  June 30, 2018

NOTE 3. OPEB SCHEDULES

A. Changes of assumptions

2017: The discount rate was changed from 3.01% for the prior Measurement Date to 3.56% for the current
Measurement Date. 

B. Changes in benefit provisions

2017:  None 

C. Methods and assumptions used in calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions  

The Actuarially Determined Contributions rates, as a percentage of payroll, used to determine the
Actuarially Determined Contribution amounts in the Schedule of Employer Contributions are calculated as
of the most recent Valuation Date.  The following actuarial methods and assumptions (from the June 30,
2016 actuarial valuation) were used to determine contribution rates reported in that schedule for the year
ending June 30, 2017:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level dollar
Amortization period
Asset valuation method

30 years, open
Market Value of Assets

Price inflation
Salary increases, including wage inflation

3 percent
3.25 percent to 18.50 percent

Initial health care cost trend rates
  Medicare Supplement Claims
   Pre-Medicare

7.75 percent 

Ultimate health care cost trend rates
  Medicare Supplement Claims
   Pre-Medicare

5.00 percent 

Year of ultimate trend rates
  Medicare Supplement Claims
   Pre-Medicare

2022 

Long-term investment rate of return, net of
pension plan investment expense, including
price inflation

3.56 percent 
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3103 Pascagoula Street· Pascagoula, MS 39567 . Phone: 228-762-6348 . Fax: 228-762-4498 . www.wmocpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Director and Board of Directors 
Pat Harrison Waterway District 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the goverrunental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Pat Harrison Waterway District, a component 
unit of the State of Tvlississippi, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material miss tatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing StandardJ, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the frnancial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. f\ccordingly, we express no such opinion. 
r\n audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the frnancial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
optruons. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund , and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Pat Harrison Waterway District, as of June 30,2018, and the respective changes 
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Memhenhip in: 
American Instirute of Certified Public Accountants' Mississippi Society of Cerrified Public Accountants 


AICPA Governmental Audit ~ality Center' AICPA Center for Audit Quality· AlCPA Employee Benefit Plan Audit Quality Center 


America Counts on CPAs 

http:www.wmocpas.com


Independent Auditor's Report 
(continued) 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 11 - 16 and 65 - 72 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fll1ancial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. \'V'e do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards 

In accordance with GOlJernment Allditing StandardJ, we have also issued our report dated December 06, 2018, on our 
consideration of the Pat Harrison Waterway District's internal control over fll1ancial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over fll1ancial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Allditing 
Stafldards in considering the Pat Harrison \'{.'aterway District's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Pascagoula, tvlississippi 
December 06, 2018 
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